
  Member Jurisdictions: Cities of Corvallis, Philomath, Adair Village, Benton County and Oregon Department of Transportation

 

CAMPO TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
Thursday, February 29, 2024 

9:00 am - 10:00 am 

VIRTUAL MEETING ONLY 
Via Microsoft Teams by clicking HERE 

Meeting ID: 260 625 465 200 
Passcode: DdkWCE 

Mobile 1 Click Number 
+1 872 242 8088

Phone Conference ID 259 631 843# 

AGENDA 

1) 9:00 Call to Order and Agenda Review Chair James 
Feldmann 

2) 9:05 Public Comment Chair 

3) 9:10 Minutes of January 25, 2024 (Attachment A)

Action: Decision on Minutes 

Chair 

4) 9:15 Draft FY25 UPWP Review (Attachment B)

Action: Feedback on draft Unified Planning Work Program 

Staff, 
Corum 

Ketchum 

5) 9:30 FAUB - MPA Boundary Adjustments

Action: Adopting a Metropolitan Planning Area boundary that coincides 
with the Federal Urban Aid Boundary  

View the proposed FAUB boundary map here: 
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/a7c266e96058473d9e8423c778
9f66e7/ 

Staff, 
Ketchum 

6) 9:40 CAMPO Roadway Ownership Map Demo

Action: Suggested edits to the CAMPO Roadway Ownership map 

View the draft map here:  
https://corvallisareampo.org/campo-road-ownership/ 
Password (case sensitive): valentine  

Staff, 
Ketchum 

7) 9:50 STIP Updates (Attachment C)

Action: Approval requested 

Staff, 
Ketchum 

8) 9:55 Jurisdictional and Other Updates All 

CORVALLIS AREA 
Metropolitan Planning Organization 

1121 NW 9th Street, Corvallis, Oregon 97330 
 Contact: Corum Ketchum, CKetchum@ocwcog.org 

 

1

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_M2FjYmIwMDEtYTMzOC00MGNmLTljMmItZjU1NTUwNWU5MzAy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cf8f0bab-b5d5-47ad-9a03-39ec05c04fbc%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%224e297dfb-957b-48f2-8e72-8881c7f18bc0%22%7d
tel:+18722428088,,259631843
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/a7c266e96058473d9e8423c7789f66e7/
https://experience.arcgis.com/experience/a7c266e96058473d9e8423c7789f66e7/
https://corvallisareampo.org/campo-road-ownership/


 
           Member Jurisdictions: Cities of Corvallis, Philomath, Adair Village, Benton County and Oregon Department of Transportation 

• CAMPO Updates 
• Jurisdictional Updates 

 
9)  10:00 Adjournment 

The next regularly scheduled CAMPO TAC meeting is set for Thursday, 
March 28, 2024, from 9:00am to 11:00am.  
 

Chair 

ATTENDENCE (FOR QUORUM PURPOSES) 
 

TAC Members Jurisdiction Attendance 
Pat Hare City of Adair Village  
Rory Rowan City of Corvallis  
Chris Workman City of Philomath  
Gary Stockhoff Benton County  
Rebecca Houghtaling Oregon State University  
James Feldmann Oregon Department of Transportation  
Ex-Officio Members Jurisdiction Attendance 

Mary Camerata Oregon Department of Environmental 
Quality  

Barry Hoffman Albany Transit/Linn Benton Loop  

Patrick Wingard Department of Land Conservation and 
Development  

Jasmine Harris US Federal Highway Administration  
Danielle Casey US Federal Transit Administration  
Mark Bernard ODOT Region 2 Principal Planner  
VACANT Oregon Department of State Lands  

Quorum Requirement: MPO business may be conducted provided a quorum of the members 
attends.  A quorum consists of at least a majority of the voting members. The TAC members may 
participate telephonically or by other means of electronic communication, provided the meeting is 
called to order at a meeting place where the public can attend, hear, understand and/or read the 
comments of the members participating by telephonic or electronic means and the members so 
participating can fully hear, understand, and/or read the comments of the other members 
participating in the meeting. 

 
 

Meeting facilities are accessible to persons with disabilities. If you will need any special accommodations,  
Please contact Ashlyn Muzechenko at least 72 hours prior to the meeting.  

Ashlyn can be reached at amuzechenko@ocwcog.org or 541-812-2002. TTY/TTD 711 

2

mailto:amuzechenko@ocwcog.org


  CORVALLIS AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

Thursday, January 25, 2024 
Virtual Meeting 

Microsoft Teams Technologies 

DRAFT MINUTES 

TAC Members Jurisdiction Attendance 

Pat Hare City of Adair Village Yes 

Rory Rowan City of Corvallis Yes 

Chris Workman City of Philomath Yes 
Gary Stockhoff Benton County Yes 
Rebecca Houghtaling Oregon State University No 

James Feldmann Oregon Department of Transportation Yes 

Guests: Steve Harvey, Daniel Wood, Jon Polansky, Rob Upson, Mark Bernard, David Rabinowitz, Diane Arney, and Wendy Byrne 
Staff: CAMPO Planner Corum Ketchum, AAMPO Assistant Planner Billy McGregor, and Administrative Assistant Ashlyn 
Muzechenko  

TOPIC DISCUSSION DECISION / CONCLUSION 
1. Call to Order and

Agenda Review
The meeting was called to order by the 2023 Chair James Feldmann at 
9:02am.    

The group conducted introductions of the TAC Members in Attendance 
to the larger group as it was the first meeting of the year.  

There were no updates made to the agenda. 

The meeting was called to 
order at 9:02am by the 
2023 Chair James 
Feldmann 

There were no agenda 
updates.  

2. Chair Elections The group decided by consensus to have ODOT representative James 
Feldmann continue as the chair of the CAMPO Technical Advisory 
Committee for the 2024 Calendar year.  

The CAMPO TAC decided 
by consensus to have 
ODOT representative 

3

Attachment A



Action: Nomination and 
election for TAC Chair for 
2024 

James Feldmann continue 
as the chair of the CAMPO 
Technical Advisory 
Committee for 2024. 

3. Public Comments Daniel Wood provided a public comment to the CAMPO TAC Members 
and Guests in attendance:  

Good morning. I know I am endlessly advocating to get things done, so 
I would like to start the year by thanking you all for the forward progress 
I have witnessed over the last two years. Every entity represented here 
has listened to public input, and has made some positive improvements 
that benefit active and multi-modal transportation. Thank you. 

Of course, we always need designs in place to apply for and obtain 
project funding. I am currently looking forward to learning of progress 
made towards completing the Philomath Highway Study, and chances 
to empower public input. Today I wish to raise awareness, and gain 
knowledge regarding three aspects of that study. 
 
1. Regarding 35th Street, when considering the volumes of Adams 
Elementary School related traffic, it would appear prudent and equitable 
to install a protected intersection w/no right-turn on red and enhanced 
pedestrian crossing elements.  
 
2. In the current fiscal cycle, the City of Corvallis planned reconstruction 
of Western Blvd from the Highway to West Hills Road, raises the 
possibility of a new MUP, connecting to the north frontage of 20/34. I 
believe there is funding available through CAMPO for the first 1,000 
feet.  This would also enhance a future ped/bike crossing to the south 
frontage following eventual ODOT reconstruction of the Western 
interchange.  
 
3. I have a process question regarding the zone of influence for major 
intersections on arterial highways, such as at 35th and at 53rd. 
Specifically, how many linear feet of turning movements are taken into 
account as influencing intersection LOS rating determinations, who 

Daniel Wood provided a 
public comment to the 
CAMPO TAC Members 
and guests.  

4



determines those parameters, and are approved development projects 
with new commercial access points directly adjacent weighted in the 
decision?  
 
Once again, thank you for forward progress and giving the public the 
chance to comment in a fruitful manner. I appreciate your dedication to 
the health and safety of all users of our transportation system.  
 
SW Corvallis resident Daniel Wood 
 

4. Minutes of December 
20, 2023,  
 
(Attachment A) 

 
Action: Decision on 
Minutes 

CAMPO Planner Corum Ketchum shared an update to the minutes 
regarding agenda item 8 where the wrong MPO TAC Chair was listed.  
 
Chair Feldmann shared his edits to the minutes adding that the 99W 
bridge work is funded by a grant from the Community Path’s Program.  
 
The CAMPO TAC Members in attendance approved the December 20, 
2023, meeting minutes with corrections by consensus.  

The CAMPO TAC 
members approved the 
December 20, 2023, 
minutes with corrections 
by Consensus.    

5. Permanent Bike 
Counter Updates 
 
Action: Informational   

 

Ketchum shared updates on the permanent bike counter. One of which 
being the potential locations would be on a path in Philomath, however 
there are no ideas for Corvallis locations at this point.  
 
Rory Rowan shared information from the city’s planning staff for 
Ketchum to reach out too in regard to planning a location in Corvallis for 
a permanent counter.  

 

6. Safety Performance 
Measures Adoption 

 
      (Attachment B) 
 
Action: Adopting State 
Targets 

Ketchum shared that the MPO has already adopted indicators for safety 
performance measures, however these can be tailored to be more 
specific to regional goals if the TAC wishes. 
 
The CAMPO TAC members in attendance agreed by consensus to 
adopt the Safety Performance Measures.   

The CAMPO TAC 
members in attendance 
agreed by consensus to 
adopt the Safety 
Performance Measures.   

5



7. FAUB – MPA 
Boundary 
Adjustments 

 
Action: Adopting a 
Metropolitan Planning 
Area Boundary that 
coincides with the 
Federal Urban Aid 
Boundary 

 

Ketchum shared that the federal partners are updating the federal 
functional classification system and the federal urban aid boundaries.  
 
Ketchum shared the link from the agenda to the comment tool provided 
by federal partners and ODOT for the MPO members to use.  
 
The Chair, James Feldmann, asked if the map contains Urban Growth 
Boundaries, Ketchum confirmed and shared the new version of the 
map with the members. 
 
Mark Bernard, shared background on the changes happening with the 
urban growth boundaries and federal urban aid boundary.  
 
The CAMPO TAC Members in attendance agreed to contact ODOT 
and CAMPO to provide any comments on the map.  

Boundary adjustments 
were not adopted by the 
CAMPO TAC. 

8. HWY 20/34 Updates 
 
 
(Attachment C) 
 
Action: Informational 

Ketchum shared that Corvallis MPO staff have been working in 
collaboration with Kittelson and Associates to develop functional 
designs for the Philomath Boulevard corridor, between 53rd and 15th 
streets in Corvallis. With compiled extensive data the group is looking 
for short term projects. The goal is to have a meeting later in the year to 
have designs more filled out, with an open house available to the public 
to provide comments.  
 
David Rabinowitz (member of the public) shared a presentation with the 
members in attendance regarding the capacity for the Hwy 20/34 
corridor on 53rd. Dave shared a proposal to add a traffic roundabout on 
53rd rather than a traffic light.   

 

9. Draft FFY25 UPWP 
Comment Solicitation 
 
(Attachment D) 

Steve Harvey (member of the public) inquired about the projects in the 
UPWP relating to the different segments of Highway 20/34 Projects.  
 
Ketchum shared the Draft FFY25 UPWP with the TAC Members and 
guests in attendance. Currently the staff are in the refining stage on the 
program. 
 

 

6



Ketchum added that Task 220 focuses on a wider range of the corridor 
where Task 510 is specifically the 20/34 work, is currently being worked 
on will be completed this Spring of 2024.  
 
Chair James Feldmann noted that comments over the UPWP can be 
emailed to Corum before end of day on January 31, 2024, at 
cketchum@ocwcog.org.  
 
Rob Upson shared that he is unsure if the City of Corvallis had been 
awarded the safe systems grant when this document was drafted and 
inquired if there was discussion between CAMPO and the city to work 
together on those grants and future projects to help save resources on 
both ends. 
 
CAMPO Staff noted that if the city would like to use some of their 12 
hours of staff help allocated to each of the CAMPO jurisdictions, or if 
more hours of help is required, city staff can reach out to get that set up 
and MPO Staff would be more than happy to assist.  
 
Ketchum clarified that a lot of the special project fund is externally 
funded, so when the funding presents itself, the funds will be 
appropriated, and the projects start in the 510 area.   
 
Chair James Feldmann asked about the temporary bike count 
schedule, and if there was extra information to share.  
 
Ketchum answered that the counters were unreliable, and missed 
multiple counts, especially during the Open Streets event in Corvallis.  

10. STIP Updates 
 

(Attachment E) 
 

Action: Informational 
 

Ketchum shared the STIP Update covering Attachment E in the 
meeting agenda packet with the TAC Members and guests in 
attendance.  
 
Ketchum noted that this STIP update has already been passed by the 
CAMPO Policy Board.  
 

 

7

mailto:cketchum@ocwcog.org


The amendment is 24-27-0618 which consolidates the Corvallis to 
Albany Multi-use Path to have one project number and one project for 
planning in design. This combines Carbon Reduction Program and 
Oregon Community Paths Program funding into one project.  

11. Jurisdictional and 
Other Updates: 
• CAMPO Updates 
• Jurisdictional 

Updates 

Other Business/CAMPO Updates:  
CAMPO UPDATES:  
There were no CAMPO Updates to share with the TAC Members in 
Attendance.  
 
JURISDICTIONAL UPDATES: 
 
Pat Hare for Adair Village shared they are in phase four of the Calgary 
Creek project and have touched bases with ODOT on the Hwy 99 
project with the UGB Expansion down to Crane Lane, and there could 
be possible additions of access down off of the highway. There is also 
the potential for a new bus stop too in that area.  
 
Additionally, staff are working on a new downtown design with planning 
engineers. The final update from Adair is there are approximately 50 
new homes being built in that area and the population is expected to 
grow from those new additions.  
 
Chris Workman for the city of Philomath shared that the streetscape 
project is moving forward, and paving will begin next summer. There 
are also poles going in for the rapid flash beacon crossings.  
 
Additionally, there was formal approval received from the schools for 
the 16 street projects and the RFP will be sent out before the end of the 
month. This project should be starting this summer and will take place 
near the Philomath Elementary School. 
 
Gary Stockhoff for Benton County shared that there is grind and inlay 
project on 19th street, that is scheduled to happen for this summer, 

 

8



however there is a lot of underground work that is now needing to 
happen, so it has been pushed out to start the county’s end of it by 
2025.  
 
Stockhoff shared that the sheep farm (AKA Oak Creek Valley) 
evacuation route has finally been completed, it took 2 years to get 
permitted and designed and the road was completed in the week. This 
gives access way for people out of Corvallis and Oak Creek and 
allowed for emergency preparedness for those in that community. 
Stockhoff noted that the country club and 53rd project is moving along, 
and will likely be started next year.  
 
Rory Rowan from the City of Corvallis shared that county and city 
council are meeting in February for a work session to give an update 
and map out the steps ahead for adoption for the corridor plan for West 
Hills Road near Western and 53rd. 
 
Chair James Feldmann for ODOT shared that the Monroe Avenue 
Project is doing an open house in February. Linked here: 
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/publicworks/page/monroe-avenue-
corridor-study.  
 
Additionally, the South Corvallis Community Plan will have a public 
engagement meeting in April and will likely go to the city council in May.   

12. Adjournment The next CAMPO TAC meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 
29, 2024, from 9:00am to 11:00am.  

The meeting was 
adjourned at 10:10am by 
Chair James Feldmann.  

 

9

https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/publicworks/page/monroe-avenue-corridor-study
https://www.corvallisoregon.gov/publicworks/page/monroe-avenue-corridor-study


i 

Fiscal Year 2025 Unified Planning Work 
Program (UPWP) 
July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025 

CORVALLIS AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING 
ORGANIZATION (CAMPO) 

Adopted XX 2024 

10

Attachment B



ii  

 
 
 
The development of this document and the implementation of tasks outlined in this document are made 

possible through the US Department of Transportation (US DOT) funds, under the Federal Highway 
Administration’s Public Law (PL) and Federal Transit Administration’s Section 5303. The required 

matching dollars for PL fund are provided by the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) and the 
matching fund for the transit fund is provided in the form of In-Kind Match by the City of Corvallis 

Transit System (CTS) and Benton County’s Special Transportation Fund (STF). 
 
  

11



iii  

RESOLUTION No. 24-01 
 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF APPROVING THE FY 2025 CORVALLIS AREA METROPOLITAN 
PLANNING ORGANIZATION'S 

UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM (UPWP) 
 

WHEREAS, the Governor of the State of Oregon, pursuant to USC 23 §123 & 450, has 
designated representatives of the cities of Corvallis, Philomath and Adair Village, 
Benton County, and the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) as the Corvallis 
Area Metropolitan Planning Organization to carry out the requirements of the 
Metropolitan Transportation Planning Process; and 

 
WHEREAS, among the major requirements of the Metropolitan Transportation Planning 
Process is the development of an annual Unified Planning Work Program that delineates the 
MPO's planning and programming activities and its associated working budget over a fiscal 
year; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Corvallis Metropolitan Planning Organization has developed a Unified Planning 
Work Program for FY 2025, in coordination with local governments, the US DOT and ODOT and 
in compliance with all applicable federal and state requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Corvallis and Benton County have agreed to provide 'in-kind' local match 
for the Federal Transit Administration's Section 5303 Funds that are applied by the MPO to 
partially cover the cost of its transportation planning activities in FY 2025; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Policy Board of the Corvallis Area MPO 
approves the FY 2025 Corvallis Area Unified Planning Work Program and its associated 
budget. 

 
Dated on this xx Day of April 2024 

 
APPROVED: 

 
 

        
Matt Lehman, Chair 
Corvallis Area MPO 

 
 
     ATTESTED: 
 
 

        
Nick Meltzer, Manager  
Corvallis Area MPO 

12



iv  

ABOUT THE CORVALLIS AREA METROPOLITAN PLANNING 
ORGANIZATION 
 
Policy Board 

Pat Hare    City of Adair Village 
Councilor Jan Napack (Vice-Chair) City of Corvallis 
Councilor Matt Lehman (Chair)  City of Philomath 
Commissioner Patrick Malone  Benton County 
Savanah Crawford   Oregon Department of Transportation 
 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 

Pat Hare  City of Adair Village 
Lisa Scherf  City of Corvallis 
Chris Workman  City of Philomath 
Gary Stockhoff  Benton County 
James Feldmann (Chair)  Oregon Department of Transportation 
Rebecca Houghtaling  Oregon State University 
Barry Hoffman  Linn-Benton Loop Transit 
 
TAC Ex-Officio Members 

Jasmine Harris    Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Oregon Division  
Ned Conroy    Federal Transit Administration (FTA), Region X 
Mark Bernard    Oregon Department of Transportation 
Mary Camarata    Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
Patrick Wingard Oregon Department of Land Conservation and 

Development (DLCD) Oregon 
Vacant     Oregon Department of State Lands (DSL) 
 
CAMPO Staff 

Nicholas Meltzer Transportation Manager 
Corum Ketchum Transportation Planner 
Ashlyn Muzechenko Administrative Assistant 
 
Address 

Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization  
1121 NW 9th Street 

Corvallis, OR 97333 
Ph: (541)-758-1911 
Fax: (541)-758-3127 
www.corvallisareampo.org 

 
 

13

http://www.corvallisareampo.org/


v  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page intentionally left blank. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



vi  

 

Table of Contents 
Section I: Introduction ................................................................................................................................... 1 
Section II: Work Program Overview .............................................................................................................. 2 
Section III – Planning Tasks ............................................................................................................................ 7 

Task 100 – Program Management ............................................................................................................ 7 

Task 200 – Long Range Transportation Planning ..................................................................................... 10 

Task 300 – Inter-Regional Transportation Planning................................................................................. 13 

Task 400 – Transportation Programming ................................................................................................ 15 

Task 500 – Special Projects ...................................................................................................................... 16 

Non-Continuous Task Schedule ................................................................................................................... 17 
Section IV: Budget Summary ....................................................................................................................... 18 
Appendix A: CAMPO Planning Area Map ..................................................................................................... 21 
Appendix B: Other Transportation Planning Activities in the MPO Area ..................................................... 22 
Appendix C: Glossary of Acronyms .............................................................................................................. 23 
Appendix D: FHWA and FTA Joint Planning emphasis areas ........................................................................ 24 
Appendix E: In-Kind Match Overview .......................................................................................................... 27 
Appendix F: FHWA Performance Management Areas, Measures, and Targets for Oregon DOT ................ 29 
Appendix G: Summary of Comments ............................................................................................................ 1 

15



 

1  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

SECTION I: INTRODUCTION 
 

What is a Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO)? 
A Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) is an organization of local governments designated per 23 
USC and 23 CFR 450 to provide transportation planning and programming in areas with a collective 
population of 50,000 or over, termed as an Urbanized Area. As a condition for receiving federal 
transportation dollars, MPOs must have a continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive transportation 
planning process in cooperation with their state Department of Transportation. The MPOs are responsible 
for development of a Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), development of a Metropolitan Transportation 
Improvement Program (MTIP) and development of a Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP).  
 
What is the Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization? 
The Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) serves as the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) for the Corvallis Urbanized Area, as designated by the Oregon Governor in December 
2002. This region includes the Cities of Corvallis, Philomath, Adair Village, and parts of Benton County.  

CAMPO is governed by a five-member Policy Board consisting of representatives of the cities of Corvallis, 
Philomath and Adair Village, Benton County, and the Oregon Department of Transportation. CAMPO’s 
Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) is made up of professional staff of the above entities, an ODOT 
Transportation Planner, a representative from Oregon State University, and a representative from the Albany 
Transit System. The representatives of relevant federal and other state agencies have ex-officio status on the 
TAC. The TAC reviews technical materials and provides recommendations to the Policy Board. 

The Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments (OCWCOG), under a contract with the Policy 
Board, provides administrative services, fiscal, and staffing to CAMPO. 

The City of Corvallis is the owner of the Corvallis Transit System and their representation on the MPO 
Policy Board also represents the interests of the transit system. 

 
What is the Purpose of this Document? 
In accordance with 23 CFR 450.308, the functions and responsibilities of CAMPO include development of a 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), development of a Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program 
(MTIP) and development of a Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP), as noted above. In addition, the MPO 
produces an annual list of obligated projects and a Public Participation Plan (PPP). CAMPO must also 
demonstrate compliance with Title VI and other non-discrimination requirements. The Fiscal Year 2025 UPWP 
demonstrates how CAMPO will fulfill these requirements between July 1, 2024, and June 30, 2025.     

It should be noted that the levels of effort and dollar amounts allocated to each activity in this document 
represent the best estimates at this time and may change with the consent of all parties involved. 

  

16



 

2  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

SECTION II: WORK PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 
 
Funding Sources and Match Documentation 

Funding from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and the 
Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT) supports the CAMPO planning program. The Infrastructure, 
Investment, and Jobs Act (IIJA), also known as the Bipartisan Infrastructure Bill (BIL), currently provides 
funding authorization for the nation’s surface transportation. A provision of the Transportation Act, referred 
to as PL Funding, provides transportation planning dollars to support MPOs across the country and acts as the 
majority of CAMPO’s annual budget. Additional CAMPO support comes from FTA 5303 planning funds. 

FHWA apportions funds to ODOT and ODOT allocates funds to MPOs using a formula developed 
cooperatively by ODOT and MPOs and approved by FHWA. The budget assumptions in this document are 
according to the most recent allocation of PL and 5303 Funds to each MPO. The expenditure assumptions 
of the budget are based on the best estimates and the latest information available at the time of 
developing the document. 

ODOT State Planning and Research (SPR) or Oregon Transportation Growth Management (TGM) funds often 
provide support for other specific planning tasks not yet funded or in process at the time of UPWP development. 
Additionally, CAMPO applies for other federal and state grant opportunities that are applicable and of interest 
to the region.  
 

Amendments 

Amendments to the UPWP to add or remove funds from the UPWP budget, move funds from one task to 
another, to add new tasks, or to alter portions of a task are allowed. MPO staff process these amendments on 
an as-needed basis and decide the level of engagement needed by the Technical Advisory Committee and/or 
Policy Board. 

Larger changes to the UPWP may necessitate Policy Board approval of an updated UPWP as well as amendments 
to the Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP) and Statewide Transportation Improvement 
Program (STIP). For example, a MTIP/STIP amendment may be needed to update the amount of planning funds 
the MPO receives under the MPO’s annual work plan project, an additional amendment may then be needed to 
allocate those new funds to a specific project included in the MTIP/STIP. Depending on the amount of funds and 
degree of change, proposed amendments to the UPWP, STIP, and MTIP may require public comment periods as 
directed by the CAMPO Policy Board.  
 
CAMPO’s MTIP revision policy is posted on the CAMPO website, under the Transportation Improvement 
Program tab: https://corvallisareampo.org/planning-programming/tip/ 
 
  

17

https://corvallisareampo.org/planning-programming/tip/


 

3  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

 Adoption Process and Public Engagement 

The timeline for the adoption of this document is as follows: 
1. Internal draft and review by January 2024  
2. State and federal review and comment period completed February 7, 2024 
3. Public comment by March 31, 2024  
4. In-kind submittal for approval to ODOT by April 1, 2024 
5. Policy board review and adoption by April 30th, 2024 
6. Adopted UPWP Submittal to ODOT by May 20, 2024 
7. ODOT approval submittal to FHWA/FTA by June 10, 2024 
8. IGA processed and executed by June 30, 2024 
9. FHWA/FTA approval by June 15, 2024 
10. SFY 2025 (FFY 2024) ODOT/FHWA obligate funds by June 30, 2024 

 
It is a goal of CAMPO to gain the maximum possible public input into its transportation planning and 
programming activities. To this end the agency has developed and formally adopted a Public Participation 
Plan that outlines strategies and efforts that are conducted in association with the tasks in the Work Program.  

A copy of the CAMPO’s Public Participation Plan is posted at the CAMPO’s Website: 
https://corvallisareampo.org/planning-programming/public-involvement/For the development of the UPWP, 
CAMPO engages stakeholders and the public by:   

• Emailing stakeholders and interested parties regarding draft UPWP discussion and opportunity for 
public comment via email or during regularly scheduled CAMPO meetings 

• Holding a 15-day comment period (held March X to March XX, 2024) prior to a decision by the Policy 
Board to adopt the UPWP 

• Providing public comment opportunities at all Policy Board and TAC meetings, which occur nine times 
each over the course of the year 

• Providing notifications regarding the UPWP public comment period on the CAMPO website, along 
with agendas and minutes for all Policy Board and TAC meetings 

 
Federal Performance Based Planning Requirements  

As a federally designated Metropolitan Planning Organization, CAMPO is required to develop and adopt 
performance targets for Safety, Pavement Condition, Bridge Condition, National Highway System (NHS) 
Performance, and Freight Movement/Reliability. Neither of the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 
measures apply as the Corvallis region is in attainment. 

There are no portions of Interstate within the Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization’s planning area, 
and all portions of the National Highway System (NHS) within the planning area are owned and maintained by 
the Oregon Department of Transportation. This fact, coupled with the limited staff capacity of a small MPO, led 
CAMPO to adopt the state targets for Safety, Pavement/Bridge Condition, NHS Performance and Freight 
Reliability. While CAMPO does not have direct jurisdiction over any infrastructure, the Safety and Transit 
performance measures apply to all public roads.  

 

Safety 
The CAMPO region experiences multiple bicycle and pedestrian fatalities (and serious injuries)most years. In an 
effort to help understand the travel patterns of people that walk and bike for transportation, CAMPO initiated a 
multi-modal count program. The count program is now an ongoing part of the CAMPO work program and will 
extend into future fiscal years. Research shows people who walk, and bike are more likely to be seriously or 

18

https://corvallisareampo.org/planning-programming/public-involvement/


 

4  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

fatally injured than people in motor vehicles. As such, one of the first steps in preventing serious injuries and 
fatalities is understanding where they are happening and how that correlates with overall travel patterns. The 
Oregon Department of Transportation provides widespread counts for motor vehicles, the CAMPO count 
program extends this to people walking and riding bikes.  

The City of Corvallis adopted a “Vision Zero” resolution during 
the summer of 2020 (Resolution 2020-14, June 1st, 2020).  

It is the goal of CAMPO to provide information, education, and 
resources to help address safety for residents, regardless of the 
mode of transportation they choose.  

 

Transit 
CAMPO staff led the development of the Public Transit Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) for the Corvallis Transit 
System (CTS), as well as the Philomath Connection, which is operated by CTS. This means CAMPO is familiar with 
the transit performance measures and has incorporated the annual update to the document into this work plan.  

 

  

What is Vision Zero? 
Vision Zero is a strategy to eliminate all 
traffic fatalities and severe injuries, while 
increasing safe, healthy, equitable 
mobility for all. – Vision Zero Network  
 

19



 

5  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Summary 
The following table provides a summary of ODOT and CAMPO’s adopted performance measures.  

 

Performance Measure Adherence Current Status Next Update1 

Transportation Safety  Supported ODOT’s Measures, February 8 
2024 2026* 

Bridge and Pavement  Supported ODOT’s Measures, February 8 
2024 2026* 

Transportation System  Supported ODOT’s Measures, February 8 
2024 2026* 

Transit Performance Measures Supported ODOT’s Measures, February 8 
2024 Winter 2024 

Greenhouse Gas (GHG)  New supported ODOT measures  August 2024 
*Next update refers to mid-point performance review and update of statewide measures. See Appendix F for 
more information on the performance measures.  

Status of CAMPO and Regional Transportation Documents 

Key Documents Current Status Next Update 
CAMPO-AAMPO 2027 - 2030 Regional Transportation Plan 
(RTP)* Approved February 9, 2022 February 9, 2027 

CAMPO Reducing Reliance on Single Occupancy Vehicle 
Trips (Locally adopted performance measures)  Approved in February 2020 Winter 2024 

FY2024-2027 Metropolitan Transportation Improvement 
Program (MTIP)  Approved August 2023 June 30, 2027 

FY26 Unified Planning Work Program Adoption expected in spring 
2024  June 30, 2025 

Title VI and Environmental Justice Plan* Updated and approved in 
2020 Winter 2024 

Public Involvement Framework* Updated and approved in 
2020 Winter 2024 

Other Documents Current Status Next Update 

Benton County Transportation System Plan Adopted March 2019 TBD 

Corvallis Transportation System Plan Adopted December 2018 2026 
Corvallis Transit Development Plan Adopted August 2018 TBD 

Philomath Transportation System Plan Adopted August 2018 2029 

Adair Village Transportation System Plan Adopted November 2019 2029 

*The Albany Area MPO (AAMPO) and Corvallis Area MPO (CAMPO) as of this document are planning to adopt a 
unified RTP 
 

 
 
1 Staff are awaiting an update on federal measures by ODOT prior to re-adopting locally. 

20



 

6  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Annual and Semiannual Reporting 

CAMPO provides annual and semiannual reporting on its activities on its website.  
UPWP reporting can be found here: https://corvallisareampo.org/planning-programming/upwp/ 
 Title VI reporting can be found here: https://corvallisareampo.org/planning-programming/transportation-
equity/ 
  

21

https://corvallisareampo.org/planning-programming/upwp/
https://corvallisareampo.org/planning-programming/transportation-equity/
https://corvallisareampo.org/planning-programming/transportation-equity/


 

7  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

 

SECTION III – PLANNING TASKS  
 
Task 100 – Program Management 

The purpose of this task is to provide management and administrative support for the MPO’s planning and 
programming activities. Components of this task are: 
 
Task 110: MPO Operation  

The administration of the MPO operation and MPO office will include: 
• Working with the MPO Policy Board and the Technical Advisory Committee to meet the 

transportation planning and programming needs of the MPO Area. 
• Holding regular meetings of the Policy Board and the Technical Advisory Committee. 
• Coordinating the MPO’s planning and programming activities with local planning officials, 

economic development agencies, local environmental organizations, transit providers, ODOT, 
FHWA, FTA and Tribal governments. 

• Attending trainings, transportation-related conferences, and statewide and local transportation-
related meetings. At a minimum, staff expect to attend: 

− The National Association of City Transportation Officials (NACTO) annual conference 
− The Oregon Chapter of the American Planning Association conference  
− Technical trainings offered by OSU and other state entities as available. 

• Involving the public in transportation planning and programming activities; public education; 
implementation of the CAMPO’s public participation process. 

• Coordinating the MPO’s transportation planning and programming with the Cascades West 
Area Commission on Transportation (CWACT) and the associations of peer MPOs. 

• Participating in the Oregon Modeling Steering Committee (OMSC), helping to implement the 
OMSC biennial workplan Complying with all applicable federal requirements, particularly, 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), Title VI requirements and Environmental Justice 
Executive Order 12898 and DOT Order 5610.2(a). 

• Coordinating regional transportation projects within the Corvallis Area MPO, including but not 
limited to:  

− Highway OR 99W Transit Pilot 
− Other projects as necessary  

Product: Regular meetings of the MPO Policy Board, Technical Advisory Committee and OMSC, an up-to-date 
website, and a CAMPO presence at regional and state meetings 
Schedule: Task is ongoing through the fiscal year 

 
  

22



 

8  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Task 120: MPO Administration  
Activities under this item will include: 

• Complying with required paperwork and documentation of activities as well as the 
maintenance of MPO records. 

• Accounting, bookkeeping, and invoicing. 
• Preparing and submitting semi-annual and annual reports to ODOT. 
• Preparing the agency’s financial audit. 
• Upkeep and maintenance of the agency’s website, including adding all MPO designation 

documents. 
• Attending organizational and personnel-related meetings. 

• Collaborating with the Albany Area MPO and other statewide partners to produce, maintain 
and revise a standardized operating manual or continuity of operations document.  

Product: Compliance with federal and state transportation planning regulations, semi-annual reports and 
invoices, financial audit results, up to date website and documented procedures  
Schedule: Task is ongoing through the fiscal year  

 
Task 130: Annual Document Review 

This sub task is intended to review, update, and publish any changes to the major documents CAMPO is 
required to maintain. An annual review at the least will be conducted, with updates completed as necessary. 
This includes: 

• Posting of Obligated Transportation Projects on the website, per Federal Requirements. 
• Reviewing the Title VI/Non-discrimination Plan, and related ADA policies and procedures. 
• Reviewing the Public Participation Plan and updating to include enough specification so that members 

of the public can clearly know the duration of comment periods for each MPO document or change, 
and how to best access the information.  

• Developing the FY26 Unified Planning Work Program and budget, and subsequent approval. 
• Amending the current (FY25) Unified Planning Work Program as needed. 

• New to this year, developing and adopting key performance measures surrounding 
greenhouse gas emissions (GHGs) for the MPO per CFR 490.105(e)-(f) 

 
Product: An FY26 UPWP that outlines the work program and budget for the upcoming year. Amendments to 
required federal planning documents as needed. GHG performance measures consistent with the state dept. 
of transportation2. 
Schedule: Completion expected in the third quarter 

 
Task 140: MPO Education and Training 

This sub task is intended to educate and inform newly appointed Policy Board members, as well as members 
of the public about the role MPOs have in coordinating regional transportation planning. Additional trainings 
on principles of transportation planning will also be considered. Materials will include the following: 

• “What is an MPO?” 
• The MPO’s role in transportation planning 

 
 
2 Adopted state targets include a 5.8% reduction in GHG emissions.  

23



 

9  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

• Transportation planning principles 
• Walking, bicycling, and transit tours of the CAMPO planning area 
• Transportation oriented speaker series (may be done in conjunction with AAMPO and local 

jurisdictions) 
• Travel demand modeling and the Oregon Household Activity Survey  (OHAS) 
• Funding opportunities for the MPO and members3  

 
Product: Better educated and engaged governing boards and members of the public.  
Schedule: Task is ongoing through the fiscal year 

 

TASK 100: PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 

Task Component  

110: MPO Operation $55,000  
120: MPO Administration $35,000  
130: Annual Document Review $4,000  
140: MPO Education and Training $6,000  

Total $100,000  
 

  

 
 
3 Examples for this cycle provided by FHWA:  

https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/pppp/index.cfm 
https://www.congress.gov/117/bills/hr3684/BILLS-117hr3684enr.pdf 

24



 

10  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Task 200 – Long Range Transportation Planning 

The purpose of this task is to provide for the long-range transportation planning needs within the 
CAMPO Planning Area. While some tasks could be perceived as “short range,” they generally contribute 
to the long-term needs and knowledge of the region, and intentionally help to build technical capacity of 
member jurisdictions (i.e. without the MPO they would not have the same opportunity). This task is 
funded through a combination of PL and 5303 Funds.  

 
Task 210: Regional Transportation Plan Performance Monitoring 

An update to the Corvallis Area MPO’s Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) was completed in spring 2022. The 
purpose of this work item is to continue placing staff effort on RTP implementation including dissemination 
of information about the plan and pursuit of project funding. Regular performance monitoring will also be 
performed as part of this work task. Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) development is supported by the 
RTP within this task.  
 
One aspect of this task could include a “Transportation Project Tracker,” which captures local and regional 
infrastructure improvements on a year-by-year basis, to share with the public as well as the policy board.  

 
Product: Development of high-level overview document summarizing the CAMPO RTP for elected officials and 
general public, progress funding projects listed in RTP, amendments to RTP as needed, ongoing performance 
monitoring and reporting 
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year 

 
Task 220: Philomath Boulevard Support (Philomath to Downtown Corvallis) 

The importance of Highway 20/34 between Philomath and I-5 in Albany is identified and discussed in Task 
510 of this work plan. This key corridor connects the CAMPO and AAMPO regions, transporting commuters, 
recreationalists, freight, and residents. One segment of the corridor, from Philomath to downtown Corvallis, 
was identified as a regionally significant corridor in the CAMPO Regional Transportation Plan and continues as 
a regular topic of interest during Policy Board and Technical Advisory Committee meetings. 

With the City of Corvallis preparing to launch the development of a West Corvallis Specific Area Plan and the 
Oregon Department of Transportation exploring ways to fund signal improvements along the corridor, MPO 
staff time can help support coordination of efforts. This work task will dedicate CAMPO staff time towards 
supporting collaborative discussions among project partners and may extend into technical support. The 
long-term intent is to investigate a range of multi-modal investments that can decrease demand along the 
Philomath to downtown Corvallis corridor for single occupancy vehicles and reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions while allowing for efficient and safe travel by all modes.  

Product: Ongoing inclusion of Philomath Boulevard on Policy Board and Technical Advisory Committee 
meeting agendas; participation in West Corvallis Specific Area Planning process; research and technical 
support as needed. 
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year 
 

Task 230: Technical Assistance to Communities 
CAMPO continues to work to provide service to member communities. This work item allocates 30 hours of 
staff time to the four member jurisdictions to work towards a long-range transportation project. Technical 
assistance can apply to a variety of work tasks but must adhere to requirements in 23 CFR 450, which outline 
the tasks eligible for reimbursement with PL funding. This includes but is not limited to: 

• Transportation Scoping Studies 

25



 

11  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

• Bicycle/Pedestrian/Vehicle Count Analysis 
• Transportation System Plan Project Identification  
• Conceptual Design Recommendation 

 
Product: 120 hours of staff time to CAMPO members. A summary of tasks completed presented to the 
Technical Advisory Committee and Policy Board 
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year 

 
Task 240: CAMPO Multi-Modal Count Program 

The Corvallis Area MPO started a multi-modal count program in FY20 and plans to continue this program on 
an ongoing basis. This task will cover staff time to deploy counters, collect data, and prepare summary 
reports. Counts have been identified through conversations with the TAC and Policy Board. Each location will 
be counted for between two and eight weeks. Summary reports will be published on CAMPO’s website. This 
year, CAMPO will begin installing “permanent” bike counters that will provide higher quality and more 
consistent data, along key routes within member jurisdictions.  
 
The program will accomplish several objectives including: 

• Understanding travel patterns of those that walk, bike, use transit and drive 
• Potentially help prioritize improvements through the identification of “hot spots” for travel by people 

that walk and bike 
• Potentially help evaluate the success of neighborhood bikeway implementation 
• Further refine regional travel models and understanding of mode shift  

 
Product: Continued deployment of mobile counters, selection of permanent count locations, interfacing with 
other MPOs and state partners to build a statewide multi-modal count program. 
Schedule: Expected to continue throughout the fiscal year and into subsequent fiscal years. Most of the 
counting work occurs during the drier seasons, from spring through fall. 

 
  

26



 

12  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

 
   

TASK 200: LONG RANGE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

Task Component  

210: RTP Performance Monitoring  $15,000  
220: Philomath Boulevard Support  $15,000  
230: Technical Assistance to Communities $20,000  
240: CAMPO Multi-Modal Count Program $15,000  

Total $65,000   
  

27



 

13  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Task 300 – Inter-Regional Transportation Planning 

The purpose of this task is to focus on the inter-regional needs and opportunities of the Corvallis 
Area Metropolitan Planning Area. Due to the inextricable ties with Albany Area Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (AAMPO), and commute sheds extending well beyond the MPO boundary, 
this task focuses on projects that impact both MPO areas. This task is funded through a 
combination of PL and 5303 Funds. 
 
Task 310: AAMPO Collaboration 

As the greater Corvallis-Albany region grows in both population and employment, there will be increased 
stress on the major commute routes through the region. Task 310 allocates money towards coordination 
with AAMPO to address regional travel demand. Started in Fiscal Year 2020, both AAMPO and CAMPO expect 
the conversation to continue into FY25. These sub tasks include, but are not limited to: 

• Hosting joint TAC and Policy Board meetings 
• Cocreating, aligning, and adopting key documents to reduce redundancy 
• Planning for regional freight connections and subsequent improvements 
• Exploring funding opportunities for local transportation project implementation 
• Continuing to study and work to modernize regionally significant corridors, such as highways 20 and 

34 
 
AAMPO has identified similar funding to contribute in their upcoming UPWP. As projects are expected to 
develop over the fiscal year, meeting minutes are the primary anticipated work product. Other projects 
listed in this work program also include significant coordination with AAMPO (Tasks 220 and 510).  
 
Product: Meeting minutes, regional maps, plans and lists of funding opportunities 
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year 

 
Task 320: Local Transit Planning Support 

Oregon passed House Bill 2017, which allocates significant funding for transit expansion. With new funding 
every two years, cities, counties and transit agencies are actively working to keep up with increases in 
transit funding and service while balancing other transportation needs. CAMPO staff will work to keep 
transit providers in the region updated on regional transit improvements and state funding as part of this 
work task. In FY21, CAMPO prepared the Public Transit Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) for Corvallis Transit 
System. As that document requires updating once a year, that will be incorporated into this task.  
 
Products: Technical assistance as needed to Corvallis Transit System and Benton Area Transit, information 
dissemination from state and federal partners. Public Transit Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) annual update. 
Potential match for State Transportation Improvement Funds (STIF) regional transit enhancement projects. 
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.  

 
Task 330: Linn-Benton Loop Support 

The purpose of this task item is to capture CAMPO staffing support for the Linn-Benton Loop Governing 
Board and Technical Advisory Committee (TAC).  Additional aspects include serving on the Loop TAC and as 
the liaison between the CAMPO Policy Board and Linn-Benton transit service. CAMPO will continue to assist 
in the implementation of the Linn-Benton Loop Service Development Plan. 

 
Product: Staffing support and technical assistance to the Linn-Benton Loop; information dissemination from 
state and federal partners. 

28



 

14  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year. 
 
Task 340: Travel Model Coordination 

This task is focused on the regional travel demand model and data collection, analysis, and development. An 
up-to-date travel demand model is useful for both MPO led and non-MPO led plans and projects (e.g. 
corridor studies, capital projects, land use planning studies and land use developments). CAMPO staff will 
continue to work with ODOT’s Transportation Planning and Analysis Unit (TPAU) to refine the Corvallis Albany 
Lebanon Model (CALM), used by both CAMPO and AAMPO. 

 
This task also includes work related to the Oregon Household Activity Survey (OHAS). The OHAS is a periodic 
statewide effort, led by the Oregon Modeling Steering Committee (OMSC), to capture demographic and 
travel behavior of Oregon residents. This data is used to update travel demand models and answer other 
transportation related questions. CAMPO is involved in the OHAS effort though the MPO’s commitment to 
provide funding (Task 420) as well as attendance at OMSC and OHAS meetings, proving input and feedback 
on the OHAS effort. 

 
Product: Up to date regional travel demand model, active participation in OHAS effort 
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year. 
 

Task 350: Mobility Platform White Paper  
It has been 20 years since the introduction of what would become Google Maps. In that time, mapping 
applications, geographic information system (GIS), and geospatial data viewing platforms have proliferated. At 
the same time, the rise of the smartphone, and the consumer location data these devices report, have created a 
wealth of low-cost travel information that governments and social enterprises are only beginning to tap. CAMPO 
proposes a review of these platforms, what kinds of data they collect, and how that information is applied, so 
that the MPO, its members, and partners can understand and apply these tools in our planning and public 
involvement efforts.  
 
The objectives of this program include:  

• A review of free or low-cost platforms, examples include Wikimaps, ESRI’s StoryMaps, the Google 
Environmental Insights Explorer, Strava Metro, Open Street Maps, and more.  

• Case studies or recommendations on how to apply these technologies and platforms.  
  

Product: Whitepaper outlining the applications of mobility platforms for local and regional governments  
Schedule: Q1 to Q3 FY 25 
 

  

TASK 300: INTER-REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

Task Component  

310: AAMPO Collaboration $20,000  
320: Local Transit Planning Support $20,000  
330: Linn-Benton Loop Support $20,000  
340: Travel Model Coordination $10,631  
350: Mobility Platform Whitepaper $10,000  

Total $80,631 

29



 

15  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Task 400 – Transportation Programming 

The purpose of this task is to continually perform transportation programming for the Corvallis MPO Area 
through the development of new Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Programs (MTIP) and the upkeep 
of the existing MTIP for inclusion in the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP).  

 
Task 410: MTIP Amendments 

This task provides for the necessary amendments to the FY21-24 and FY24-27 MTIP and STIP documents. 
The amendments are generally initiated either by member jurisdictions or by ODOT.  
  
Product: Up to date FY21-24 and FY24-27 MTIP document. Transition from FY21-24 to FY24-27 MTIP in 
October 2023. 
Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year 

 
Task 420: Oregon Household Activity Survey (OHAS) Funding Set-Aside 

CAMPO is expected to participate in the 2030 Oregon Household Activity Survey, coordinated by ODOT, the 
Oregon Modeling Steering Committee and statewide MPO partners. The OHAS is necessary to develop data 
that feeds the Corvallis-Albany-Lebanon Model (CALM). These regional models are a required part of long-
range planning for MPOs. Setting aside money now for the survey in 10 years will allow CAMPO to offset the 
costs without using STBG funds member agencies need for construction projects. Annually, $8,000 will be set 
aside, for a total of $80,000 over 10 years. This money will be held in an account by ODOT through a 
memorandum of understanding.  
 
Product: Starting in FY 21 and continuing to FY30, A total of $80,000 to contribute to the 2030 OHAS 
Schedule: Ongoing for this fiscal year and into the future 
 

TASK 400: TRANSPORTATION PROGRAMMING 

Task Component  

410: MTIP Amendments $13,246  
420: 2030 OHAS Set-Aside $80,000  

Total $21,246  
  

30



 

16  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Task 500 – Special Projects 
 
Task 510: Special Project Pool 

The special project pool task is included here to enable CAMPO to pursue projects of interest as 
opportunities arise. Projects will require the support of the CAMPO Technical Advisory Committee and 
Policy Board. These projects are externally funded, and no funding has been identified as of publishing.  

Product: Product is dependent on the projects pursued and interests of the CAMPO TAC and Policy Board 
Schedule: Schedule is dependent on projects pursued 

TASK 500: Special Projects Pool 

Task Component  
510: Special Projects Pool $0 

Total $0  
 
 
 
  

31



 

17  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

NON-CONTINUOUS TASK SCHEDULE 
The table below summarizes non-continuous tasks CAMPO is undertaking during State Fiscal year 2025. Note 
that dates may change as projects evolve. 
 
Table 1 - Non-continuous tasks being undertaken in State Fiscal Year 2025 

 
Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 

July 
2024 

Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan 
2025 

Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

130: Annual Document 
Review 

            

240: CAMPO Multi-Modal 
Count Program, 
Deployment 

            

240: CAMPO Multi-Modal 
Count Program, Reporting 

            

350: Mobility Platform 
Whitepaper 

            

 
  

32



 

18  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

SECTION IV: BUDGET SUMMARY 
 
The following budget tables detail the planned activities for fiscal year (FY) 2025 in comparison with FY 2024. In 
addition, a breakdown of expenses and funding sources is provided.  

 
Table 2 - FY25 Budget by Subtask 

Task FY25 
Amount 

FY24 
Amount 

Dollar 
Change 

Percent 
Change 

TASK 100: Program Management $100,000  $100,000  $0  0% 
  110: MPO Operation $55,000  $55,000      
  120: MPO Administration $35,000  $35,000      
  130: Annual Document Review $4,000  $4,000      
  140: MPO Education and Training $6,000  $6,000      
TASK 200: Long Range Transportation Planning $65,000  $76,500  ($11,500) -15% 
  210: RTP Performance Monitoring  $15,000  $14,500      
  220: Philomath Boulevard Support  $15,000  $20,000      
  230: Technical Assistance to Communities $20,000  $22,000      
  240: CAMPO Multi-Modal Count Program $15,000  $20,000      
TASK 300: Inter-Regional Transportation Planning $80,631.14  $66,269  $14,362  22% 
  310: AAMPO Coordination $30,000  $20,000      
  320: Local Transit Planning Support $20,000  $20,000      
  330: Linn-Benton Loop Support $20,000  $16,269      
  340: Travel Model Coordination $10,631.14  $10,000      
TASK 400: Transportation Programming $21,246.48  $30,000  ($8,754) -29% 
  410: MTIP Amendments $13,246.48  $20,000      
  420: 2030 OHAS Set-Aside* $8,000  $10,000      
TASK 500: Special Projects $0  $34,224  ($34,224) -100% 
  510: Highway 20/34 Corridor Investment Strategy $0  $34,224      
  520: Special Projects Pool         
  TOTAL $266,877.62* $306,992.85  ($40,115) -15% 

*ODOT budget estimate as of Dec. 12th, 2023 

  

33



 

19  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

The Infrastructure and Investment Jobs Act (IIJA) created a new requirement that 2.5% of planning funds must 
be spent towards creating safe and accessible transportation options. This set aside must be clearly identified in 
metropolitan work plans. These funds are labeled in the table below under Safe and Accessible Transportation 
Options, or SATO4. These funds require a local match.  
 
 
Table 3 - FY25 Budget by Fund Source 

Task 

Task Budget 
Total5   

PL Funds FTA 5303/SATO 
Funds 

PL 
Match 
Funds 

(10.27% 
from 

ODOT) 

Local 
Match 
(5303) 
(Funds 
and In-
kind) 

Task 100: Program Management $100,000  $89,730  $0 $10,270  $0 
Task 200: Long Range Transportation 
Planning $45,000  $40,379  $0 $4,622  $0 
Task 240: Count Program $20,000  $14,125  $4,258 $1,617    
Task 300: Inter-Regional 
Transportation Planning (5303) $80,631.14  $0 $72,350 $0.00  $8,281 
Task 400: Transportation Programming $21,246.48  $19,064  $0  $2,182  $0 
Task 500: Special Projects   $0  $0  $0  $0 
Total SFY25 Budget $266,877.62  $163,298  $76,609  $18,690  $8,281  

 
  

 
 
4 Safe and Accessible Transportation Options - requires each MPO to use at least 2.5% of its PL funds (and each State to use 2.5% of its State Planning and 
Research funding under 23 U.S.C. 505) on specified planning activities to increase safe and accessible options for multiple travel modes for people of all ages 
and abilities. [§ 11206(b)]. CAMPO tracks the use of SATO dollars in its quarterly financial statements to the state DOT.  
5 Includes personnel, non-payroll, and contracted staff. 

34



 

20  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

 
Table 4 - FY25 Expenses 

Cost Amount 
Percent 
of Total 
Budget 

CAMPO Staff Payroll Expenses $212,401  80% 
CAMPO Non-Payroll Expenses $54,477  20% 
  Advertising $500    
  Board/Comm/Meeting Expense $500    
  Contract $2,000    
  Copying $500    
  Dues and Memberships $500    
  Legal Expenses $500    
  Licenses and Fees $2,000    
  Maintenance and Repair $1,000    
  Overhead and Administration $32,612    
  Postage $500    
  Printing $500    
  Rent $6,000    
  Supplies $991    
  Telephone $374    
  Training $4,000    
  Travel $2,000    
Special Projects Pool $0  0% 

Total $266,877.62  100% 
  

*Contracted task support includes 
part time work from the COG 
Transportation Planner as well as 
technical assistance from external 
contractors. The special projects 
pool can be payroll, material, or 
contract expense, and will be 
approved by the Policy Board prior 
to expenditure. 

35



 

21  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

APPENDIX A: CAMPO PLANNING AREA MAP 

 
 

36



 

22  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

APPENDIX B: OTHER TRANSPORTATION PLANNING ACTIVITIES IN THE MPO 
AREA  

 
The following is a list of concurrent transportation planning activities within the MPO Area: 

 
1. Oregon 99W South Corvallis Facility Plan. This Oregon Department of Transportation project, in 

collaboration with local jurisdictions, will amend the Oregon Highway Plan and provide a 
refinement plan to the City’s Transportation System Plan for OR 99W through South Corvallis. 
Developed in coordination with the South Corvallis Area Plan, CAMPO staff is actively participating 
in the planning study. 

2. South Corvallis Area Plan. A City of Corvallis led project that predominantly focuses on land use, 
some transportation elements will be addressed as well.  

3. West Corvallis Area Plan. The purpose of the project being taken on by the City of Corvallis is to 
develop a plan through a public process that refines land uses and provides an orderly plan for the 
development of local street networks and alternative transportation options to create safe, low-
stress, and convenient navigation through the area. The plan is intended to refine land uses in 
response to urbanization patterns in the area, state legislation on middle housing and Climate 
Friendly and Equitable Communities, and local changes to land use zoning options. The expected 
outcome is a plan for Southwest Corvallis that establishes thoughtful zoning patterns, local street 
networks and alternative transportation options, and creates a sense of community and 
neighborhood character for the area. 

   
 

  

37



 

23  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

APPENDIX C: GLOSSARY OF ACRONYMS 
 

AAMPO Albany Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
ADA Americans with Disabilities Act 
BIL Bipartisan Infrastructure Law 
CWACT Cascades West Area Commission on Transportation 
CAMPO Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
CTS Corvallis Transit System 
DEQ Department of Environmental Quality 
DLCD Department of Land Conservation and Development 
DOT Department of Transportation 
FFY Federal Fiscal Year 
FHWA Federal Highway Administration 
FTA Federal Transit Administration 
FY Fiscal Year 
Section 5311 FTA’s program of financing rural transit services  
Section 5310 FTA’s program of financing transit for the elderly and people with disabilities 
Section 5303 FTA’s program of financing transit planning activities of MPOs Section 5307 
Section 5307 FTA’s program of financing urban transit systems 
GHG Green House Gases 
IIJA Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act 
ITS Intelligent Transportation System 
IGA Intergovernmental Agreement 
MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 
MTIP Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program 
OCWCOG Oregon Cascades West Council of Governments 
ODOT Oregon Department of Transportation 
OSU Oregon State University 
PEA Planning Emphasis Areas 
PL Fund Planning Funds allocated to Metropolitan Transportation Planning activities 
PPP Public Participation Plan 
PTASP Public Transit Agency Safety Plan 
RTP Regional Transportation Plan 
SATO Safe and Accessible Transportation Options 
STF Special Transportation Fund 
SFY State Fiscal Year 
STIF State Transportation Improvement Funds 
STIP Statewide Transportation Improvement Program 
STBG Surface Transportation Block Grant 
TAC Technical Advisory Committee 
TPAU Transportation and Planning Analysis Unit of ODOT 
TGM Transportation Growth Management 
TIP Transportation Improvement Program (See MTIP) 
TSP Transportation System Plan 
UPWP Unified Planning Work Program 
USC United States Code 
USDOT United States Department of Transportation 

  

38



 

24  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

APPENDIX D: FHWA AND FTA JOINT PLANNING EMPHASIS AREAS 
 

FHWA and FTA issued new, joint Planning Emphasis Areas (PEAs) in December 2021. These updated Planning 
Emphasis Areas are intended to be used by metropolitan planning organizations, state departments of 
transportation, transit agencies, and federal land management agencies in their Unified Planning Work 
Programs and State Planning and Research Work Programs. An excerpt from the FHWA-FTA memo 2021 
Planning Emphasis Areas for use in the development of Metropolitan and Statewide Planning and Research Work 
programs is provided below, which describes the four PEAs:6 
2021 Planning Emphasis Areas 

Tackling the Climate Crisis – Transition to a Clean Energy, Resilient Future   
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) divisions and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) regional offices 
should work with State departments of transportation (State DOT), metropolitan planning organizations 
(MPO), and providers of public transportation to ensure that our transportation plans and infrastructure 
investments help achieve the national greenhouse gas reduction goals of 50-52 percent below 2005 levels by 
2030, and net-zero emissions by 2050, and increase resilience to extreme weather events and other disasters 
resulting from the increasing effects of climate change  
 
Equity and Justice40 in Transportation Planning  
FHWA Division and FTA regional offices should work with State DOTs, MPOs, and providers of public 
transportation to advance racial equity and support for underserved and disadvantaged communities.  This 
will help ensure public involvement in the planning process and that plans and strategies reflect various 
perspectives, concerns, and priorities from impacted areas.   
 
Complete Streets  
FHWA Division and FTA regional offices should work with State DOTs, MPOs and providers of public 
transportation to review current policies, rules, and procedures to determine their impact on safety for all 
road users.  This effort should work to include provisions for safety in future transportation infrastructure, 
particularly those outside automobiles.   A complete street is safe, and feels safe, for everyone using the 
street.   
 
Public Involvement   
Early, effective, and continuous public involvement brings diverse viewpoints into the decision-making 
process.  FHWA Division and FTA regional offices should encourage MPOs, State DOTs, and providers of public 
transportation to increase meaningful public involvement in transportation planning by integrating Virtual 
Public Involvement (VPI) tools into the overall public involvement approach while ensuring continued public 
participation by individuals without access to computers and mobile devices.  The use of VPI broadens the 
reach of information to the public and makes participation more convenient and affordable to greater 
numbers of people. 
 
 
 

  

 
 
6 See the original document here: https://www.transit.dot.gov/regulations-and-programs/transportation-planning/2021-planning-emphasis-areas 

39



 

25  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Table 5: CAMPO Planning Emphasis Areas in relation to UPWP Tasks 

Task Tackling the 
Climate Crisis 

Equity and 
Justice 40 

Complete 
Streets 

Public 
Involvement 

TASK 100: Program Management     

  110: MPO Operation     

  120: MPO Administration X   X 
  130: Annual Document Review    X 
  140: MPO Education and Training  X X X 
TASK 200: Long Range 
Transportation Planning     

 210: Regional Transportation Plan 
Performance Monitoring  X X X  

 
220: Philomath Boulevard 
Support (Philomath to Downtown 
Corvallis) 

X X X X 

 230: Technical Assistance to 
Communities     

 240: CAMPO Multi-Modal Count 
Program X X X X 

TASK 300: Inter-Regional 
Transportation Planning     

  310: AAMPO Collaboration    X 

  320: Local Transit Planning 
Support X X   

  330: Linn Benton Loop Support X X   
 340: Travel Model Coordination     

 350: Mobility Platform 
Whitepaper    X 

TASK 400: Transportation 
Programming     

  410: MTIP Amendments    X 
  420: 2030 OHAS Set-Aside     
TASK 500: Special Projects     
  510: Special Project Pool     
       

  
 

  

40



 

26  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Task Strategic Highway 
Network 

Federal Land 
Management 

Agency 
Coordination 

Planning and 
Environment 

Linkages 

Data in 
Transportation 

Planning 

TASK 100: Program Management     

  110: MPO Operation X X X  

  120: MPO Administration  X X  

  130: Annual Document Review    X 
  140: MPO Education and Training   X X 
TASK 200: Long Range 
Transportation Planning     

 210: Regional Transportation Plan 
Performance Monitoring X  X X 

 
220: Philomath Boulevard 
Support (Philomath to Downtown 
Corvallis) 

X  X X 

 230: Technical Assistance to 
Communities X   X 

 240: CAMPO Multi-Modal Count 
Program   X X 

TASK 300: Inter-Regional 
Transportation Planning     

  310: AAMPO Collaboration X    

  320: Local Transit Planning 
Support   X X 

  330: Linn Benton Loop Support   X X 
 340: Travel Model Coordination    X 

 350: Mobility Platform 
Whitepaper    X 

TASK 400: Transportation 
Programming     

  410: MTIP Amendments    X 
  420: 2030 OHAS Set-Aside     
TASK 500: Special Projects     
  510: Special Project Pool     
       

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41



 

27  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

APPENDIX E: IN-KIND MATCH OVERVIEW 
This appendix provides an overview of in-kind match funding as shown in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2024 Corvallis Area 
MPO Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP). The Corvallis Area MPO Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) 
shows the details for tasks one through five as listed below in the “FY25 Budget by Fund Source” table. This 
table is also included above in Section V of the UPWP. 

FY25 Budget by Fund Source 

Task 

Task Budget 
Total7   

PL Funds FTA 
5303/SATO 

Funds 

PL Match 
Funds 

(10.27% 
from 

ODOT) 

Local 
Match 
(5303) 

(Funds and 
In-kind) 

Task 100: Program Management $100,000  $89,730  $0 $10,270  $0 
Task 200: Long Range Transportation 
Planning $45,000  $40,379  $0 $4,622  $0 
Task 240: Count Program $20,000  $14,125  $4,258 $1,617    
Task 300: Inter-Regional 
Transportation Planning (5303) $80,631  $0 $72,350 $0.00  $8,281 
Task 400: Transportation Programming $21,246  $19,064  $0  $2,182  $0 
Task 500: Special Projects   $0  $0  $0  $0 
Total SFY25 Budget $266,877.62  $163,298  $76,609  $18,690  $8,281  

 

The sections below provide additional detail on in-kind match by source. 

CAMPO Technical Advisory Committee Meetings 
Assumed 9 TAC Meetings at 1.5 hour per meetings, with a $100/hour loaded rate per staff person equals $5,400. 
 

CAMPO TAC MEETING 
Jurisdiction Loaded rate/hour Rate for 9 1.5-hour meetings 
Corvallis $100 $1350 
Philomath $100 $1350 
Benton County $100 $1350 
OSU $100 $1350 
Total $5,400 

CAMPO Policy Board Meetings 
Assumed 9 Policy Board Meetings at 2 hours per meeting, $32.67/hour (the value of an Oregonian volunteer’s 
time given by Independent Sector, a nationwide nonprofit coalition) rate for elected official volunteer time 
equals $1,764.18.  
 

CAMPO POLICY BOARD MEETINGS 
Jurisdiction Volunteer 

rate/hour 
Rate for 9 2-hour 
meetings 

Corvallis $32.67 $588.06 
Adair Village $32.67 $588.06 
Philomath $32.67 $588.06 

 
 
7 Includes personnel, non-payroll, and contracted staff 

42



 

28  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Benton County (paid) - - 
Total $1,764.18 

 

Additional Tasks 
As described, for a total of $6,400.  

Item Loaded rate/hour Estimated 
Hours 

Total 

Bicycle/Pedestrian Count 
Program Assistance $100 20 $2,000 
Philomath Boulevard 
Planning $100 40 $4,000 
Public Transportation Agency 
Safety Plan (PTASP) Update $100 4 $400 
Total 64 $6,400 

 

Overall In-Kind Breakdown 
Item Amount 
9 TAC Meetings $5,400 
9 Policy Board Meetings $1,764.18 
Additional Tasks $6,400 
Total  $13,564.18 

 
OVERALL ESTIMATED IN-KIND TOTAL: $13,564.18 

ESTIMATED IN-KIND TO BE USED AS MATCH IN FY2025: 13,564.18  

43



 

29  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

APPENDIX F: FHWA PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT AREAS, MEASURES, 
AND TARGETS FOR OREGON DOT  

 

 
As of February 15, 2024 

 
 *FHWA Performance Areas and Measures are contained in the Oregon Highway Plan (OHP) Appendix D  
 
~ Adopted May 17, 2018 (Original 2006 OTP is currently under Revision)  
The Oregon Highway Plan addresses the FHWA performance management requirements for National Highway Performance, Congestion Mitigation and Air 
Quality, and National Freight Movement. The performance-based planning process and performance targets contained in this amendment are for ODOT’s 
federal reporting requirements only. The requirements and targets addressed in this amendment are not applicable to the Transportation Planning Rule 
for consistency in regional and local transportation system plans. The federal performance areas and targets regarding public transportation are contained 
in the Oregon Transit Asset Management Plan and will be referenced in the Oregon Public Transportation Plan.   

44

https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Planning/Documents/OHP-Appendix-I-Amendment.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/Planning/Documents/OHP.pdf
https://www.google.com/url?client=internal-element-cse&cx=017270664345420165392:fvl4q8lncsw&q=https://www.oregon.gov/odot/Planning/Documents/OPTP_V1_FINAL_Feb2019.pdf&sa=U&ved=2ahUKEwihxMjqx6uEAxXCHTQIHbA5CSYQFnoECAkQAg&usg=AOvVaw16I4CPPZCyw1Z122x6Vs_9


 

1  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Item Page  Comment From Response 
1 - CFR 450.306. Upon review, the UPWP does not seem to address CFR 450.306 (B) (9 & 

10). "The metropolitan transportation planning process shall be continuous, 
cooperative, and comprehensive, and provide for consideration and implementation 
of projects, strategies, and services that will address the following factors": 
    9 = improve resiliency and reliability of transportation system and reduce or 
mitigate stormwater impacts of surface transportation 
  10 = enhance travel/tourism 
https://www.ecfr.gov/current/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-E/part-450/subpart-
C/section-450.306#p-450.306(b) 
 
Consider reviewing and demonstrating closer ties to these factors.  

ODOT-TPAU Staff think that this is better 
addressed in the RTP mentioned 

in RTP and priority selection 
criteria for projects.  

2 - CFR 450.306(g). CFR 450.306(g) states: 
"The metropolitan transportation planning process shall (to the maximum extent 
practicable) be consistent with the development of applicable regional intelligent 
transportation systems (ITS) architectures, as defined in 23 CFR part 940." 
https://www.ecfr.gov/on/2024-01-25/title-23/chapter-I/subchapter-K/part-940 
 
Consider referencing ITS or ODOT's ITS architecture in the UPWP. 

ODOT-TPAU Addressed in the RTP's objectives 
- refer to chapter 4 of the RTP 

"Prioritize ITS"  

3 - Safety section on Fed. performance-based planning requirements on page 3 mentions 
ped. fatalities and ped/bike injuries, but the UPWP does not explicitly address such 
users nor intent to improve safety. 

ODOT-TPAU Task 210 refers to RTP 
performance monitoring, where 

the RTP discusses safety 
extensively  

4 - Consider providing an UPWP timeline: draft, review, adoption, OTC review, and 
FHWA & FTA approval. An example is below. 
  

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

5 vi Table of Contents. There is a references error to Section III. ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

6 3 Engagement process. Bullet 3 of 4. Please include the number or frequency of Policy 
Board and TAC meetings. 

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

45



 

2  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

7 3 Federal Performance Based Planning Requirements. Since CAMPO is adopting state 
targets for Safety, Pavement Condition, Bridge Condition, NHS Performance, and 
Freight Reliability, consider adding a table (perhaps in the Appendix) of/a link to, 
ODOT's target document: 
https://www.oregon.gov/ODOT/PerformMang/Documents/FHWA%20Performance%
20Management%20Area%20Targets.pdf 

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

8 3 Safety. Please describe/define "Vision Zero" and provide a link to the resolution for 
more information. 

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

9 4 Summary. Performance Measure Adherence. Consider adding an asterisk for 2026 
update years with note: "Next update refers to mid-point performance review and 
update of statewide measures. See AAMPO UPWP FY 2025 for reference. 

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

10 4 Status of CAMPO and Reg. Trans Doc. Verify if status and next update should match 
what is stated in the AAMPO UPWP. AAMPO had an asterisk for their "2028*" update 
that "2027, AAMPO and Corvallis Area MPO (CAMPO) as of this document are 
planning to adopt a unified RTP". 

ODOT-TPAU Will update to match ODOT R2 
Comments and align with 

AAMPO 

11 4 Status of CAMPO and Reg. Trans Doc. 2024 CAMPO UPWP states that next RTP 
update is 2027. Please re-check this date. 
https://corvallisareampo.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/CAMPO-FY24-UPWP-
16May2023_Final-1.pdf 

ODOT-TPAU Will update to match ODOT R2 
Comments and align with 

AAMPO 

12 4 Status of CAMPO and Reg. Trans Doc. Should Climate Friendly and Equitable 
Communities (CFEC) implementation be added here? CFEC was mentioned in the 
2024 CAMPO UPWP (Appendix B). 

ODOT-TPAU CFEC work has been completed 
and the MPO is no longer 
involved in CFEC planning 

13 5 Task 110. Bullet 7. OMSC stands for "Oregon Modeling Statewide Collaborative". 
Also: this work serves to implement the OMSC biennial workplan, not OMIP. Please 
correct. 
Link to the OMSC biennial workplan: 
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1guwrPYBehbdVVqSUXEa4zHFA3YHQX6j-/view 

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

14 5 Task 110. Product. Consider adding OMSC meetings to the product list. ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

15 6 Task 120. Consider adding a bullet for "Creation and maintenance of an MPO 
continuity and operations binder" similar to AAMPO UPWP FY 2025. 

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

46



 

3  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

16 6 Task 140. MPO Education and Training. Consider including the travel demand model 
and OHAS as additional training topics. 

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

17 8 Task 210. For reference (and an example of such tracker) is ODOT's Project Tracker: 
https://gis.odot.state.or.us/tpt/projects?map=show 

ODOT-TPAU Noted 

18 8 "Year by year, long range". Minor, grammatical comment. Try to be consistent with 
dashes [e.g., high-level, year-by-year, long-range, up-to-date, set-aside]. 

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

19 11 Task 310. "Such has highways". Minor, grammatical comment. Consider replacing 
with "such as:". 

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

20 11 Task 310. “CAMPO is involved in the OHAS effort though the MPO’s commitment to 
provide funding (Task 420) as well as attendance at OMSC and OHAS meetings, 
proving input and feedback on the OHAS effort.” Task 340 relates to being on the 
OMSC OHAS subcommittee and reviewing deliverables only, not funding the current 
effort. The commitment to funding (Task 420) relates to set aside money for the next 
effort. That reference does not belong in this Task 340. All OHAS 2024 funding has 
been committed and transferred.    

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

21 12 Task 350. Schedule. Consider revising to reference FY, to "Q1 to Q3 FY 25". ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

22 13 Task 420. 2030 OHAS Funding Set Aside. This incorrectly states ODOT, OMSC, MPOs 
are coordinating the next OHAS and that is not true. The description needs to be 
corrected to reflect the MPO anticipation of data collected using an undetermined 
approach. 

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

23 13 Task 420. 2030 OHAS Funding Set Aside. Please note that AAMPO has the set-aside 
at $10K over 8 years, but CAMPO has it at $8K over 10 years. Should these be 
consistent with one another? 

ODOT-TPAU Discussed with partners. $8,000 
is accurate 

24 14 Task 510. Consider adding examples of previous special projects (to help in 
understanding). 

ODOT-TPAU Noted  

25 21 Appendix C. Please review and include terms that have not been defined [e.g., SATO, 
COG, PEA, STBG]. 

ODOT-TPAU Discuss with partners  

26 23 Appendix D. Along with the link, please consider providing a brief description of the 
four PEAs. 

ODOT-TPAU Noted 

27 23 Appendix D. Minor, grammatical comments. Please replace "The link below provide" 
with "The link below provides". 

ODOT-TPAU Accepted 

47



 

4  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

28 17, 
18, 25 

$266,877.62. 62 cents looks deceptively accurate. Please consider rounding to the 
nearest dollar (like the other estimates). 

ODOT-TPAU Rejected. Federal partners 
require tracking to the cent. 

29 16 Task 300 does not line up with the Task Component on page 12. ODOT SPR Will update to match ODOT R2 
Comments and align with 

AAMPO 
30 3 How many is multiple? Which five years? Either provide data for specific data range 

like AAMPO or make a more general statement about crashes. 
ODOT R2 Noted 

31 4 Plan updates Source: 
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/Planning/Documents/TSP_Funding_Program_Schedul
e.pdf 

ODOT R2 Noted 

32 5 Is this [Highway OR 99W Transit Pilot] still in the works? ODOT R2 Discussed at review meeting 

33 8 Thanks for including this [Transportation Project Tracker]. ODOT R2 Noted 
34 14  [Task 510] Remove if no funding allocated to the task? ODOT R2 Discussed at review meeting 
35 16 Incorporate funding amount for Task 350 ODOT R2 Accepted 
36 16 [Table FY25 Budget Summary] Cite source date?  ODOT R2 Accepted 

37 23 [Appendix D] Update to match tasks above ODOT R2 Accepted 
38 23 Ibid ODOT R2 Accepted 

39 24 Ibid ODOT R2 Accepted 

40 24 Ibid ODOT R2 Accepted 
41 6 Any grant interest / opportunities? [Task 140] 

DOT Navigator | US Department of Transportation  
 
New Grant - Prioritization Process Pilot Program Discretionary Grant (NOFO is 
expected to be posted in the Winter of 2024).   
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/planning/pppp/index.cfm 
 
https://www.congress.gov/117/bills/hr3684/BILLS-117hr3684enr.pdf 

FHWA Bullet item added to task list 

42 4 Of course there is Justice 40, and a Public Involvement document that came out to 
encourage outreach to underserved communities etc.  
 
Justice40 Initiative | US Department of Transportation (recently updated) 
 
PROMISING PRACTICES FOR MEANINGFUL PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN 
TRANSPORTATION DECISION-MAKING 

FHWA Noted 

48



 

5  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

APPENDIX G: SUMMARY OF COMMENTS 
 
 

43 4 Provide more precise dates if they are available.  For example, the next RTP/MTP is 
due by November 29, 2028. 

FHWA Will update to match ODOT R2 
Comments and align with 

AAMPO 
44 16 Summary. Performance Measure Adherence. Consider adding an asterisk for 2026 

update years with note: "Next update refers to mid-point performance review and 
update of statewide measures. See AAMPO UPWP FY 2025 for reference. 

FHWA Accepted 

45 - 5303 Funding will likely require a plan amendment and will impact PL funding  ODOT Noted 

46 3 Appreciate this section very much!  
 
See this link for planning implementation for all PMs (GHG has not been added yet):  
 
LEARN THE TERRAIN - Study PBPP requirements in the FHWA/FTA planning rule - 
Roadmap - Performance Based Planning - Planning - FHWA (dot.gov)  

FHWA Noted 

47 - Submit in kind match documentation to Katie Parlette at ODOT by April 1 
Katie.M.PARLETTE@odot.oregon.gov 

ODOT Noted 

48 - For the Public Participation Plan update look at 23 CFR 450.316 FHWA Noted 
49 - Clarify amount for 2.5% funding set aside and what tasks the funding applies to FHWA/ODOT Addressed in quarterly invoices. 

The MPO supports identifying 
this as a separate fund in the IGA 

50 4 Of course there is Justice 40, and a Public Involvement document that came out to 
encourage outreach to underserved communities etc.  
 
Justice40 Initiative | US Department of Transportation (recently updated) 
 
PROMISING PRACTICES FOR MEANINGFUL PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT IN 
TRANSPORTATION DECISION-MAKING  

FHWA Noted 

51 2 I spent very little time looking at the MTIP Revision Policy.  
 
Regarding:  
"5. Cancelling a federally funded and regionally significant project" 
 
Please note that canceling a project alone is considered a full amendment.    
Replace draft MTIP on CAMPO with final copy  

FHWA Accepted 

52 2 CAMPO Staff - Is it clear to folks what would constitute an approval from FHWA/FTA? 
i.e. Dollar amount threshold etc.… 

FHWA Noted 

49



 

6  
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (CAMPO) Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) FY 2025 

Table 6 - Commenting Agency and Staff 

Agency Staff person 
ODOT Region 2, Area 4 (ODOT R2) James Feldmann 
ODOT Statewide Planning and Research (SPR) Arlene Santana 
ODOT TPAU  Not available  
FHWA  Jasmine Harris 

 

50



MEMORANDUM 
Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 
1121 NW 9th Street 
Corvallis, Oregon 97330 

Date: February 14th, 2024 
To: CAMPO Technical Advisory Committee and Policy Board 

From: Corum Ketchum, CAMPO Staff 
Re: Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) Amendments 

Overview 
The purpose of this memorandum is to provide an update on recent and ongoing amendments to the 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) relevant to the Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (CAMPO). A summary table of amendments can be found on the following page.  

This amendment (#24-27-0801) allocates funding for BAT’s fleet replacement for FFY23. 

Approval is requested for Amendment #24-27-0801 

Background on the STIP and MTIP 
The STIP is the Oregon Department of Transportation’s capital improvement plan for state and federally 
funded transportation projects. The current STIP (FY2021-2024) went into effect October 1, 2020, and expires 
September 30, 2024. Many of the amendments presented to the CAMPO board will be part of the upcoming 
FY2024-2027 STIP which was adopted in the fall of 2023. CAMPO acts as the regional coordinator to the STIP 
helping ensure that amendments and other adjustments are processed appropriately. CAMPO also maintains 
a Metropolitan Transportation Improvement Program (MTIP) which is consistent with the STIP. 

Amendment Types 
 There are three types of STIP and MTIP amendments processed by CAMPO: 

• Full Amendments: Require the greatest level of scrutiny including communicating project information
to the Policy Board. The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) determines if significant public outreach
is necessary. At a minimum, the item will be reviewed by the TAC and placed on the next Policy Board
agenda, which comes with notification requirements. Additional items for consideration include
provision of a public comment period (two weeks), holding a public meeting, and any other actions
deemed advisable by the TAC.

• Administrative Amendment: Require less scrutiny and are usually familiar to local staff members.
Administrative amendments are brought to the TAC for discussion and approval. The Policy Board is
notified of Administrative Amendments at their next regularly scheduled meeting.

• Adjustment: For minor changes, CAMPO staff have the authority to approve adjustments. Adjustments
do not require committee approval or public notice.

Additional details on STIP and MTIP amendments can be found in the CAMPO MTIP policy HERE. 

51

Attachment C

https://corvallisareampo.org/planning-programming/tip/


Action Requested 
Technical Advisory Committee 

o Amendment #24-27-0797 – Approval requested 
o Amendment #24-27-0801 - Information only 

 
Policy Board 

o Amendment #24-27-0797 - Information only 
o Amendment #24-27-0801 – Approval requested 

52



 
 
Table 1 - STIP Amendments  

Key 
Number Project Name Amendment 

Number Description Amendment 
Type 

Financial 
Impact 

21552 US20/OR34/OR99W: 
Harrison Blvd (Corvallis) 24-27-0797      Add $100k of ADA funds to PE and $712,358 

($559k AT Leverage R2 and $153,358 ADA) to CN. 
Admin. 
Adjustment $100,000 

23604 Benton Area Transit Fleet 
Replacement FFY23 24-27-0801 Create new FFY23 FTA earmark project. Full 

Amendment $1,890,000 
 

53


	24-02-29 CAMPO TAC Agenda
	CORVALLIS AREA
	Metropolitan Planning Organization

	Attachment A_24-01-25 CAMPO TAC MINUTES
	Attachment B_DRAFT CAMPO FY25 UPWP With Changes - No Comments
	Adopted XX 2024
	About The Corvallis Area Metropolitan Planning Organization
	Policy Board
	Technical Advisory Committee (TAC)
	TAC Ex-Officio Members
	CAMPO Staff
	Address

	Section I: Introduction
	Section II: Work Program Overview
	Funding Sources and Match Documentation
	Amendments
	Adoption Process and Public Engagement
	Federal Performance Based Planning Requirements
	Annual and Semiannual Reporting

	Section III – Planning Tasks
	Task 100 – Program Management
	Task 110: MPO Operation
	Product: Regular meetings of the MPO Policy Board, Technical Advisory Committee and OMSC, an up-to-date website, and a CAMPO presence at regional and state meetings
	Schedule: Task is ongoing through the fiscal year

	Task 120: MPO Administration
	Product: Compliance with federal and state transportation planning regulations, semi-annual reports and invoices, financial audit results, up to date website and documented procedures
	Schedule: Task is ongoing through the fiscal year

	Task 130: Annual Document Review
	Product: An FY26 UPWP that outlines the work program and budget for the upcoming year. Amendments to required federal planning documents as needed. GHG performance measures consistent with the state dept. of transportation1F .
	Schedule: Completion expected in the third quarter

	Task 140: MPO Education and Training
	Product: Better educated and engaged governing boards and members of the public.
	Schedule: Task is ongoing through the fiscal year


	Task 200 – Long Range Transportation Planning
	Task 210: Regional Transportation Plan Performance Monitoring
	Product: Development of high-level overview document summarizing the CAMPO RTP for elected officials and general public, progress funding projects listed in RTP, amendments to RTP as needed, ongoing performance monitoring and reporting
	Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year

	Task 220: Philomath Boulevard Support (Philomath to Downtown Corvallis)
	Product: Ongoing inclusion of Philomath Boulevard on Policy Board and Technical Advisory Committee meeting agendas; participation in West Corvallis Specific Area Planning process; research and technical support as needed.
	Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year

	Task 230: Technical Assistance to Communities
	Task 240: CAMPO Multi-Modal Count Program
	Product: Continued deployment of mobile counters, selection of permanent count locations, interfacing with other MPOs and state partners to build a statewide multi-modal count program.
	Schedule: Expected to continue throughout the fiscal year and into subsequent fiscal years. Most of the counting work occurs during the drier seasons, from spring through fall.


	Task 300 – Inter-Regional Transportation Planning
	Task 310: AAMPO Collaboration
	Product: Meeting minutes, regional maps, plans and lists of funding opportunities
	Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year

	Task 320: Local Transit Planning Support
	Products: Technical assistance as needed to Corvallis Transit System and Benton Area Transit, information dissemination from state and federal partners. Public Transit Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) annual update. Potential match for State Transportation ...
	Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year.

	Task 330: Linn-Benton Loop Support
	Task 340: Travel Model Coordination
	Task 350: Mobility Platform White Paper
	Product: Whitepaper outlining the applications of mobility platforms for local and regional governments
	Schedule: Q1 to Q3 FY 25


	Task 400 – Transportation Programming
	Task 410: MTIP Amendments
	Product: Up to date FY21-24 and FY24-27 MTIP document. Transition from FY21-24 to FY24-27 MTIP in October 2023.
	Schedule: Task is ongoing throughout the fiscal year

	Task 420: Oregon Household Activity Survey (OHAS) Funding Set-Aside
	Product: Starting in FY 21 and continuing to FY30, A total of $80,000 to contribute to the 2030 OHAS
	Schedule: Ongoing for this fiscal year and into the future


	Task 500 – Special Projects
	Task 510: Special Project Pool
	Product: Product is dependent on the projects pursued and interests of the CAMPO TAC and Policy Board
	Schedule: Schedule is dependent on projects pursued



	Non-Continuous Task Schedule
	Section IV: Budget Summary
	Appendix A: CAMPO Planning Area Map
	Appendix B: Other Transportation Planning Activities in the MPO Area
	Appendix C: Glossary of Acronyms
	Appendix D: FHWA and FTA Joint Planning emphasis areas
	2021 Planning Emphasis Areas

	Appendix E: In-Kind Match Overview
	FY25 Budget by Fund Source
	CAMPO Technical Advisory Committee Meetings
	CAMPO Policy Board Meetings
	Additional Tasks
	Overall In-Kind Breakdown

	Appendix F: FHWA Performance Management Areas, Measures, and Targets for Oregon DOT
	Appendix G: Summary of Comments

	Attachment C_Memo STIP Amendments_02.14.24
	Overview
	Background on the STIP and MTIP
	Amendment Types
	Action Requested




